
Executive 
Thursday, 2 August 2018 

Selby District Council 
 
 

Agenda 
 

 
 
Meeting: Executive 
Date: Thursday, 2 August 2018 
Time: 4.00 pm 
Venue: Committee Room - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road, Selby, 

YO8 9FT 
To: Councillors M Crane (Chair), J Mackman (Vice-Chair), 

C Lunn, C Metcalfe and C Pearson 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
 The Executive is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 

12 July 2018. 
 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  
 

 A copy of the Register of Interest for each Selby District Councillor is available for 
inspection at www.selby.gov.uk. 
 
Councillors should declare to the meeting any disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any item of business on this agenda which is not already 
entered in their Register of Interests. 
 
Councillors should leave the meeting and take no part in the 
consideration, discussion or vote on any matter in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 
Councillors should also declare any other interests. Having made the 
declaration, provided the other interest is not a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the Councillor may stay in the meeting, speak and vote on that 
item of business. 
 
If in doubt, Councillors are advised to seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.selby.gov.uk/


Executive 
Thursday, 2 August 2018 

4.   Summit Indoor Adventure Activity Refresh (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 Report E/18/12 outlines changes to Summit Indoor Adventure to meet 
customer demand whilst aligning the leisure and fitness offer of the site.  
 

5.   Review of the Lifeline Service (Pages 13 - 26) 
 

 Report E/18/13 outlines a review of the Lifeline service and potential 
options going forward.  
 

 
 
 
 
Janet Waggott 
Chief Executive 
 

Date of next meeting 

Thursday, 6 September 2018 at 4.00 pm 

 
 
For enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Palbinder Mann, on 
01757 292207 or pmann@selby.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
Recording at Council Meetings 
 

Recording is allowed at Council, committee and sub-committee meetings 
which are open to the public, subject to: (i) the recording being conducted with 
the full knowledge of the Chairman of the meeting; and (ii) compliance with 
the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at meetings, 
a copy of which is available on request. Anyone wishing to record must 
contact the Democratic Services Manager using the details above prior to the 
start of the meeting. Any recording must be conducted openly and not in 
secret. 



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

Selby District Council 
 
 

Minutes 

  

 
Executive 
 
Venue: Committee Room - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road, 

Selby, YO8 9FT 
 

Date: Thursday, 12 July 2018 
 

Time: 4.00 pm 
 

Present: Councillors M Crane (Chair), J Mackman (Vice-
Chair), C Metcalfe and C Pearson 
 

Officers Present: Dave Caulfield (Director of Economic Regeneration 
and Place), Karen Iveson (Chief Finance Officer 
(s151)), Gillian Marshall (Solicitor to the Council), 
Julian Rudd (Head of Economic Development and 
Regeneration), Mike James (Media and 
Communications Manager), Keith Cadman (Head 
of Commissioning, Contracts and Procurement) (for 
minute item 18), Aimi Brookes (Contracts Team 
Leader) (for minute item 18), Jeff Gorse (Inspiring 
Healthy Lifestyles) (for minute item 18), Andrew 
Watmough (Inspiring Healthy Lifestyles) (for minute 
item 18) Chris Kwasniewski (Housing and 
Regeneration Manager) (for minute item 19), 
Jennifer Clewley (Business Transformation Officer) 
(for minute item 21) and Palbinder Mann 
(Democratic Services Manager)  
 

Public: 0 
 

Press: 0 
 

 
 
 
 

NOTE: Only minute numbers 17 to 19 and 21 are subject to call-in 
arrangements. The deadline for call-in is 5pm on Wednesday 25 July 2018. 
Decisions not called in may be implemented from Thursday 26 July 2018.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

 
 
 
 
14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies were received from Councillor Lunn.  

 
15 MINUTES 

 
 The Executive considered the minutes of the meeting held on 7 

June 2018. 
 
RESOLVED:  

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 
June 2018 for signature by the Chair. 

 
16 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 
 Councillor Mackman declared a personal interested in item six 

“Housing Development Programme Progress Report” as he was 
Chair of the Selby and District Housing Trust.  
 

17 GAMBLING POLICY REFRESH 
 

 Councillor Pearson, Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health 
and Culture presented the report which outlined the Gambling 
Policy for renewal.  
 
The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture 
explained that the gambling policy needed to be reviewed every 
three years and the next review was due by January 2019. 
 
RESOLVED: 

i) To note that the statutory review of the 
gambling policy is required and must go 
before Policy Review Committee, subject to 
public consultation before returning to the 
Executive and being approved by Full 
Council. 

 
ii) To approve a public consultation on the 

draft Gambling Policy at Appendix A. 
 
REASON FOR DECISION: 
 
To ensure compliance with the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

18 LEISURE CONTRACT ANNUAL REVIEW APRIL 2017 - MARCH 
2018 

Page 2



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

 
 Councillor Crane, Leader of the Council presented the report that 

outlined the eighth formal annual review of the leisure contract with 
Inspiring Healthy Lifestyles (IHL). 
 
The Leader of the Council explained that this was the third review 
under the current contract with IHL and that from the information 
present, more people were using the leisure facilities.  
 
The following discussion took place: 
 

 The representatives from IHL explained that the past year 
had been a year of progress with the wellbeing service going 
from strength to strength. The Executive were informed that 
the visits to both leisure sites in the district had increased. 
 

 Discussion took place on the usage of the sites by casual 
users and it was felt that it would be useful if a breakdown 
could be provided demonstrating the membership split 
between casual and permanent users for 17/18. The 
representatives from IHL agreed to provide this information.  
 

 In response to a query concerning the car parking, it was 
noted that while the car park was under pressure at peak 
times, on the whole it operated well. 
 

 A query was raised on the figure of the total number of 
lifestyle members as a total proportion of the population of 
the district. IHL explained that the membership figure also 
included people living outside of the district. It was agreed 
that IHL would provide a breakdown of usage over the last 
12 months with figures for lifestyle members who lived within 
and out of the district and those who were regular users and 
those who were not.   
 

 In response to a query regarding funding, the Head of 
Commissioning, Contracts and Procurement explained that 
the external funding was used for additional outreach work 
while the wellbeing team were funded by the core contract 
with the Council.  
 

 In response to a query around marketing, the 
representatives from IHL explained that marketing strands 
had changed in recent year which meant current marketing 
was predominately carried out on social media. It was added 
that IHL did have a marketing plan which was based around 
attracting people to the sites.  
 

The Executive stated that they wished to amend the 

Page 3



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

recommendation to commend the performance to date of IHL on 
the leisure contract to reflect the positive work being undertaken. 
 
RESOLVED: 

To note the key findings of the report and 
commend the performance of IHL on the leisure 
contract to date.  
 

REASON FOR DECISION: 
 
To recognise the work IHL has made in delivering the leisure 
services offer across the Selby District and in delivering key 
aspects of the corporate plan.  
 

19 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 Councillor Pearson, Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health 
and Culture presented the report which provided an update on the 
current status and progress of the Housing Development 
Programme (HDP) following its approval in January of this year.  
 
The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture 
explained that in January this year, the Executive had approved the 
HDP based on an investment of £22m. It was noted that agreement 
had been reached on a loan rate and terms of funding for the site at 
Ulleskelf between Selby District Council and Selby District Housing 
Trust. It was also noted that there was good progress of the 
schemes on site at Byram, Ousegate and Riccall. The Executive 
was informed that the report asked for approval to commence the 
next phase in the programme.  
 
RESOLVED: 

i) To note progress that is being made on the 
Housing Development Programme and to 
declare the additional phase 2 small site 
(land adjacent to the George and Dragon 
West Haddlesey) surplus to operational 
requirements. 
 

ii) To approve the disposal of the Edgerton 
Lodge site based on the Terms and method 
outlined in paragraphs 2.12-2.14 of this 
report and to delegate authority to the 
Director of Economic Regeneration and 
Place, in consultation with the Chief 
Finance Officer and Executive Lead Member 
for Finance and Resources to secure the 
most advantageous offer for the site 
subject to ensuring that the site delivers 
housing and market value is achieved. 

Page 4



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

 
iii) To approve the disposal of the Barlby Road 

depot site for commercial development and 
delegate authority to the Director of 
Economic Regeneration and Place, in 
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer 
and the Executive Lead Member for Finance 
and Resources, to dispose of the site by 
either open market sale or sealed bids, 
subject to ensuring that best consideration 
is achieved including securing outline 
planning consent prior to disposal if 
required. 

 
REASON FOR DECISION: 
 
To continue to deliver the Housing Development Programme 
approved by the Council. 
 

 
 
 

20 PRIVATE SESSION 
 

 It was proposed, and seconded, that the Executive sit in private 
session for the next item due to the nature of the business to be 
transacted. 
 
RESOLVED: 

That, in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted the meeting be not 
open to the press and public during discussion of 
the following items as there will be disclosure of 
exempt information as described in paragraph 3 
of Schedule 12(A) of the Act. 

 
21 DIGITAL STRATEGY AND DELIVERY PROGRAMME 

 
 Councillor Crane, Leader of the Council presented the report that 

outlined the Council’s proposed approach to how technology will be 
used to support and enable the improvement and transformation of 
Selby District Council.  
 
The Leader of the Council explained that the strategy was important 
in the transformation and development of ICT at the Council. The 
Executive was informed that the four main areas of cost were 
Channel Shift, Digital Workforce, Disaster Recovery and ICT 
Infrastructure. 
 

Page 5



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

In response to a query concerning why passwords to devices 
needed to be reset on a frequent basis, it was explained that this 
was due to the Council needing to remain Public Service Network 
(PSN) compliant.  
 
In response to a query concerning the funding for the Digital 
Workforce area, the Business and Transformation Officer explained 
that this funding would be for Microsoft licences and replacing the 
devices of officers which were approaching end of life.  
 
The Executive discussed the total funding for the programme and 
raised concern at other projects as part of the total funding which 
were not included in the report. The Business Transformation 
Officer explained that additional projects would be brought back to 
the Executive for formal approval.  
 
It was agreed that recommendation four should include reference to 
consultation with the Lead Executive Member for Finance and 
Resources.  
 
RESOLVED: 

i) To approve the draft Digital Strategy 2018-
20. 

 
ii) To approve the draft Digital Delivery 

Programme. 
 

iii) To approve the proposed Programme 
Managenment arrangements. 

 

iv) To approve the outline business cases set 
out at Appendix C of the report and give 
delegated authority to the Director of 
Corporate Services & Commissioning in 
consultation with the Lead Executive 
Member for Finance and Resources on 
behalf of the Programme Board to proceed 
with the projects and associated spend 
within the ICT Capital Programme. 

 
REASON FOR DECISION: 
 
As recognised in the recent Peer Review, digital transformation is 
central to the future sustainability of Selby District Council.  

Delivery of the Digital Strategy – via the proposed Digital Delivery 
Programme – will facilitate acceleration of the digital and 
transformational agenda. 
 

Page 6



Executive 
Thursday, 12 July 2018 

 

The meeting closed at 5.01 pm. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 

Report Reference Number: E/18/12   
___________________________________________________________________ 

 

To:     Executive  
Date:     2nd August 2018 
Status:    Key Decision 
Ward(s) Affected: All  
Author: Keith Cadman, Head of Commissioning, Contracts 

and Procurement  
Lead Executive Member: Cllr Mark Crane, Leader of the Council 
Lead Officer: Julie Slatter, Director of Corporate Services and 

Commissioning 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
Title: Summit Indoor Adventure Activity Refresh 
 
Summary:  
 

The facility is in the third year of operation requiring a refresh of the activity mix to 
maintain an attractive offer. Whilst IHL manage and operate the facility under a 10 
year management agreement the building and activity infrastructure are assets of the 
Council and therefore the responsibility for funding any refresh remain with the 
Council. The planned changes set out within the body of the report have been 
developed to meet customer demand whilst aligning the leisure and fitness offer of 
the site.     
 
Recommendations: 
 

i. It is recommended that the Executive approve the capital funding in this 
financial year for the enabling the works for the facility refresh to be 
conducted outside the period of peak demand, after school holidays and 
prior to shorter daylight hours. This funding will come from Programme For 
Growth. 
  

Reasons for recommendation 
 
To ensure the Summit Indoor Adventure remains an exciting visitor attraction 
containing an activity mix aligned to customer demand.  
 

 
1.  Introduction and background 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



1.1 The Summit Indoor Adventure was built adjacent to Selby Leisure Centre with 
connectivity between the two buildings on the ground floor to assist customer flow 
and maximise access to both facilities.  
 

1.2 The construction and internal facility fit out of the Summit was funded by the 
Council to generate an annual revenue from the operation of the facility by a third 
party under the terms of a 10 year management agreement.  

 

1.3 The activities available in the summit are subject to customer demand, review 
and therefore refresh. The internal design and layout of the building was planned 
to allow for internal changes as replacement activities are identified as part of the 
process for natural refresh.  

 

1.4 Whilst ground floor connectivity between the two buildings has proved successful, 
additional connectivity is required at the first floor level to maximise utilisation of 
changing facilities on the first floor of the leisure centre. This will allow internal 
remodelling of the ground floor of the summit into useable activity space.    
 

2.   The Report  
 
2.1 The Summit building consists of five activity zones designed to be staffed and 

operated independently whilst allowing customers to participate in several 
activities across the five zones.  

 
2.2 IHL have reviewed the activities and use of space in consultation with the 

Council as landlords to identify activities requiring refresh and any enabling 
works to the fabric of the building. 

 
2.3 The review also identified both seasonal and daily demand profiles that have 

been factored into the timing of any enabling works for the activity refresh. 
School holidays and the winter are periods of peak demand requiring any 
enabling works to be done outside of these periods to minimise customer impact. 

 
2.4 The soft play area and demand for childrens parties have identified the need to 

increase the space for this activity and in particular a demand for a “messy play” 
area. The additional space for this activity can be provided through the 
conversion of ground floor changing accommodation adjacent to the soft play 
area. This will require improved access to changing facilities in the leisure 
centre. 

 
2.5 Access to the first floor changing accommodation in the leisure centre can be 

provided from the Summit by connecting the two buildings at first floor level 
where the current ski zone is within the Summit. This will require the re-
configuring of this zone into a multi purpose space that can be utilised for fitness 
classes, high intensity training and additional gym space.  

 
2.6 Programming of the enabling works outside of peak seasonal demand provides a 

two month window during September and October to complete the necessary 
enabling works to refresh the activity mix. 

 

Page 10



 
3.  Alternative Options Considered  
 
N/A 
 
4. Implications  
 
4.1  Legal Implications 
 

The proposed enabling works and refresh of activities within the Summit 
building is consistent with the contract.  
 

4.2 Financial Implications 
 

  
SDC 

Capital 
Funding 

Implementation of planned change to SKI £190,000 

Party Room £40,000 

Total £230,000 

 

It is recommended that the capital funding required to change the activity mix 

at the Summit is funded from Programme for Growth. 

4.3 Policy and Risk Implications 
 
 There are no policy or risk implications 
 
4.4 Corporate Plan Implications 
 
 The Summit facility directly support the Council’s corporate priorities of 

Making Selby District a great place to do business, to enjoy life and to make a 
difference.        

 
4.5 Resource Implications 
 

The investment will help maintain an important revenue stream for the 
Council.  

 

4.6 Other Implications 
 
 N/A 
 

 4.7 Equalities Impact Assessment  

Page 11



 
 

5. Conclusion 
 
5.1 The refresh will help maintain the Summit as an attractive destination for 

residents and visitors to the District.  
 
6. Background Documents 

 
 None 
 
7. Appendices 
 

None 
  

Contact Officer:  
 
Keith Cadman 
Head of Commissioning, Contracts and Procurement 
kcadman@selby.gov.uk 
01757292252 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 12

mailto:kcadman@selby.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

 

 
Report Reference Number: E/18/13  
___________________________________________________________________ 

 

To:     Executive 
Date:     2nd August 2018 
Status:    Non Key Decision 
Ward(s) Affected: All  
Author(s): June Rothwell, Head of Operational Services 
 Drew Fussey, Service Manager 
Lead Executive Member: Cllr Pearson, Lead Executive Member for Housing, 
 Health and Culture 
Lead Officer: Julie Slatter, Director Corporate Services and 

Commissioning 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Title: Review of the Lifeline Service 
 
Summary:  
 

A review of the Lifeline Service has been essential following the loss of Supporting 

People funding and the re-commissioning of Telecare (Assistive Technology) 

Services by North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC). 

The review has identified that without change, the service is not sustainable. Over a 

period of 3 years NYCC has means-tested existing and new customers receiving the 

service reducing the number of supported customers. NYCC funding ended on 

March 31st 2018, and the SLA with NYCC for the provision of a Telecare service 

also ended due to the recommissioning of the service and award to a new 

contractor. The impact from the loss of the NYCC income is £111k, £92k Supporting 

People and £19k Telecare. 

The review found that for the number of customers the service is overstaffed and not 

meeting customers’ needs as it currently offers no Out-Of-Hours (OOH) service. The 

review, undertaken by officers, explored a range of options and recommends that the 

Executive support the proposed reconfigured service that meets customer needs 

and expectations (Option C). 

The proposed service is expected to cover its direct costs and make a contribution to 

corporate overheads but the contribution will be less than the current budget and 

consequently savings will be required to cover this. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 
Recommendations: 

 

1. To note the projected budget shortfall of £88k in 2018/19 following the end of 

Supporting People funding and the Telecare contract which will be managed 

within the overall General Fund budget through in-year savings and/or use of 

contingency. 

2. Support the trial of the reconfigured serviced (Option C) 

 
 
Reasons for recommendation(s) 
 
To ensure the Council continues to provide a vital service that is an integral part of 
delivering the Corporate plan.  It will enable the Council to play a key role in 
supporting better outcomes for individuals, help reduce isolation and help manage 
demand across the wider health and social care system, supporting more people to 
remain independent in their own home. 
 
 
1.  Introduction and background 
 
1.1 The Council’s Lifeline Service is a support service that enables older, disabled 

and vulnerable people to remain living independently in their own homes for 
longer. It provides customers with alarm pendants, call centre monitoring, and 
a daytime mobile emergency response service. In addition, some customers 
receive regular home visits, reducing isolation and loneliness. The service is a 
discretionary service and not a statutory requirement for the Council. 

 
1.2 The service has been operating for around 15 years having developed from 

the warden service for sheltered accommodation council tenants. The team 
consists of 11.93Full Time Equivalents (FTE) staff, including a Supervisor, a 
Telecare Officer and 9.93 Support Officers. It is a well-established team, with 
an extensive bank of experience and local knowledge. 

 
1.3 The service supports priorities 2 and 3 of the Corporate Plan, making Selby a 

great place to enjoy life, and make a difference.  
 
1.4 Following the withdrawal of Supporting People funding by NYCC and the 

Assistive Technology contract the service will lose £111k of income. The 
service in its current structure is unsustainable triggering this essential review. 
Any growth in private payers combined with the proposed redesigning of the 
service will contribute towards mitigating this position. 

 
 
2.   What is the Lifeline Service 
 
2.1      Lifeline is a call alarm support service to enable people to live independently, 

offering the peace of mind to them and their relatives that assistance is on 
hand when needed. 

Page 14



 
2.2 There are currently 4 levels of support available; Friends & Family, 

Reassurance, Level 1 & 2 support plan visits. 
 
2.3 As of 1st April 2018 the service supported 840 residents in the district; 736 

private paying customers and 104 Supporting People (SP) funded customers. 
 
 

3.0 The ending of North Yorkshire Contract and Supporting People (SP) and 
procurement of NYCC Assistive Technology Contract 

 
3.1 In 2017, following public consultation NYCC took the decision to withdraw SP 

funding from April 2018. At the same time NYCC also tendered for a new 
Assistive Technology Service (including lifeline and telecare). Officers of the 
Council worked with other existing North Yorkshire Local Authority and social 
housing providers of lifeline and telecare in partnership with Tunstall Ltd but 
the collaborative bid was unsuccessful. 

 
3.2 The NYCC SP contract has been an ongoing arrangement since 2003 and 

has set the standard and charges for the entire service.  It requires lengthy 
administration support plans for each customer, adhering to a quality 
assurance framework (QAF), and Support Officers making monthly or weekly 
visits to customers.  

 
3.3 Previously, customers could receive full or part funding support from NYCC if 

they passed a financial and need assessment, as determined by NYCC.  
Selby District Council were commissioned by NYCC, via SP funding, to 
provide the service to those funded customers on Level 1 and Level 2 
packages. 

 
3.4 In 2014 NYCC had 497 supported customers. NYCC revised the criteria for 

support to the customer and a new need and financial assessment was 
introduced in 2014 leading to a reduction in SP customers to 187 by 2017 

 
3.5 The fee paid by NYCC to Selby for the provision of the service has been fixed 

for the last 5 years, with no inflationary rise. This has contributed to the 
provision of the service running at a loss to the Council. 

 
3.6 The private payer element of the Lifeline service for Level 1 and Level 2 

customers mirrored the NYCC contract pricing, administration, and QAF 
requirements. This has restricted the development of the service.  

 
 3.7 In April 2017, NYCC ceased the provision of the Care Team which had 

provided the OOH’s response in Selby. This left customers with call 
monitoring response or friends and family only out of normal working hours. 

 
3.8 NYCC gave notice that due to the loss of SP funding the contract with SDC 

would end on 31st March 2018. NYCC have notified those customers 
receiving support that their funding will be reviewed and will only be continued 

Page 15



if the customer has a care element. Customers who are eligible for NYCC 
support will transfer to the new Assistive Technology contract. 

 
3.9 Any new referrals for NYCC funded Telecare and Lifeline will be referred by 

NYCC to their new service provider appointed to deliver the Assistive 
Technology contract. The Lifeline service will then have to generate its own 
income by marketing to secure new customers.  

 
3.10 The Lifeline team are continuing to receive referrals from the NHS, primarily 

York teaching hospital. In the first quarter of 2018/19 35 referrals have been 
received without any marketing or promotion. With targeted promotion, via GP 
surgeries, pharmacies and voluntary and community groups who support the 
elderly, disabled and vulnerable, the new service and products offered 
(developed through market research) should enable the required growth to 
ensure the service achieves full cost recovery within 18 months.  

 
 
4.0 Current Service Provision and Staff Structure 
 
4.1 The current structure for the Lifeline Service has 11.93 Full Time Equivalents 

(FTE).  The service is currently operating with 1 Supervisor, 1 Telecare Officer 
and 9.93 Support Officers. The service has two vacant posts.  

 
 
5.0  Alternative Options Considered  
 

The Officers review identified the following possible options for consideration 
(A to D): 

 
5.1 Option A - Continue as is, no action – The existing service is losing money. 

The projection for 2018/19, on a full cost recovery basis, anticipates a shortfall 
of £89k. Given the loss of NYCC funding (£105k budgeted for 2018/19) is only 
partially mitigated by vacancy savings and a one-off £20k contribution from 
NYCC, and still has the requirement to meet the costs of corporate 
overheads. 
 

5.1.1 The NYCC contract specified how the service was provided. A survey of 
current customers and feedback from customers carried out in February 2018 
and feedback from new customers seeking the service identified that the 
current service model was outdated and no longer reflects customer need. 
Following the ceasing of the NYCC Care Team in 2017, there is no OOH 
service provision, and the service would be overstaffed based on the number 
of customers. The loss of NYCC funding entails a potential reduction of 
around 104 customers as well as associated SP and Telecare income, if no 
action is taken to retain these customers. It would also result in a loss of 
referrals from NYCC. A new competitor (NYCC’s preferred supplier NRS 
Healthcare) would be operating locally. 
 

5.2 Option B - Discontinue service or transfer to 3rd party - This option would 
eliminate financial loss and risk to SDC. A third party provider would be 

Page 16



expected to take on the staff under TUPE and customers could still receive a 
service.   

 
5.2.1 If the service is discontinued without transfer to a third party staff would be at 

risk of redundancy, with a likelihood of one-off redundancy costs (£38k 
approx.) and dependent upon age pension strain payments, these costs have 
yet to be established. In addition current overheads for support services £94k 
for 2018/19 would not be saved and would be required to be allocated to other 
services as indirect saving opportunities would not be realised, in addition 
depreciation charges for the equipment would still be incurred until the point of 
disposal.  

 
5.2.2 Transfer to a third party would still support independent living, but might not 

support vulnerable people, or reduce isolation in the same way as the existing 
service due to the loss of the companion visits.  

 
5.2.3 In either case customers’ choices would be limited, and the high levels of trust 

customers place on the Council’s service would probably decline.  
 
5.3 Option C - SDC provides a reviewed reconfigure service, including OOH, 

residential support, co-ordinating Disabled Facilities Grants and Aids 
and Adaptations, providing optional support visits and offering more 
products –  
This option fully supports the Corporate Plan aims (independent living, and 
supporting vulnerable people). Within the marketplace, SDC would have a 
unique offer of support, retaining the ‘companion’ support officer visits if 
required by the customer on a ‘Pay-to-Play’ pricing model ensuring full cost 
recovery. Seven posts would be protected. The customer base would be more 
likely to grow as the market research carried out in January 2018 suggests 
customers want and are willing to pay for the companion visits.  
 

5.3.1 If customer numbers are not sustained, there is some risk of overstaffing and 
this option requires an increased cost for OOH of around £18,000 p.a. This 
option also necessitates a complete change of staff contracts and a new 
product offer including new fees which is shown below (8.2.16). There would 
be redundancy costs of up to £12,000 and potential pension strain costs 
which are yet to be established. 

 
5.4 Option D – The “Ryecare” model – SDC provides installation, no support 

visits, and all emergency response provided by a 3rd party - This option has a 
low staff cost and low financial risk. It provides what the customer needs. The 
service would just be another provider in the marketplace. At this time the 
financial appraisal of this option has not been pursued, no potential 3rd party 
providers have been identified that would enable Officers to develop this 
option.  Although it supports independent living it does not offer the 
companion support for vulnerable customers. Given external provision, the 
capacity for connecting to other support and prevention services will be 
difficult to influence. This option has no USP, offering the same level of 
service as other providers. Again, this option would result in staff 

Page 17



redundancies of at least 5 staff. Redundancy costs would be approximately 
£30k with a potential for pension strain costs. 

 
5.5 A risk assessment for each proposed option has been undertaken. Option C 

is the most likely to remove and mitigate the risks that will be proactively 
managed.  

 
 
6.0 Analysis 
 
6.1 Given the presenting factors it is felt the only realistic option is C. The Lifeline 

service, although not a statutory service, is an integral part of delivering the 
Corporate Plan.  The reconfigured service will enable the Council to play a 
key role in supporting better outcomes for individuals and help manage 
demand across the wider health and social care system, and enable more 
people to remain independent in their own home. 

 
6.2 By implementing Option C the issue of overstaffing would be significantly 

reduced, customer service improved, and the shortfall arising from the loss of 
NYCC income addressed.  

 
6.3 It is recommended that this option is trialled for 18 months, in order to allow 

time for customers to adjust to the new product, and for proof of concept. 
 
6.4 Whilst Option C is initially more costly than some other options, it enables 

continuing support of SDC’s Corporate priorities. By enabling people to 
remain independent in their homes, the Lifeline Service supports priorities 2 
and 3 of the Corporate Plan, making Selby a great place to enjoy life, and 
make a difference. The work of the service also supports the work of various 
partner agencies, including the NHS and NYCC. 

 
6.5 Option C offers a USP of additional optional support, and a flexible offer for 

the benefit of the customer. It would also enable the Lifeline Service to meet 
customer need (via OOH emergency response) in order to be able to grow the 
service in future. 

 
6.6 The current Lifeline Service does not currently offer an OOH emergency 

mobile response. Historically, this aspect of the service was provided by 
NYCC. However, in March 2017 NYCC ceased to provide OOH response at 
short notice. As a result, outside of normal working hours, the Lifeline Service 
offers call centre monitoring only. This means that the existing product does 
not meet customers’ needs, and is not comparable with other providers in the 
marketplace. Nor does it allow the service to contribute to reducing the 
pressure/demand on blue light services including ambulance and police that 
the call monitoring centre have to call upon to respond to falls etc. OOHs. The 
Lifeline team are trained to deal with falls and already have the necessary 
equipment to help life people off the floor. But currently can only respond 
during the working day. 

 

Page 18



6.7 In addition, the opportunity to merge delivery of the Disabled Facilities Grant 
(DFG) with the Community Support Team has been agreed.  This has created 
additional efficiencies for DFG provision, utilising any spare capacity within 
the Support Officer team during the standard working day. Linking DFG with 
Lifeline provision provides another practical way for the Council to deliver on 
Corporate priorities, and provides great value for money. 

 
6.8 Furthermore, any referrals from Social Workers or Occupational Therapists for 

DFG provide additional opportunities to work with NYCC to provide support 
and assistance to vulnerable customers, for example, the Support Officer will 
be able to promote the availability of both the Lifeline Service and DFG’s, 
which could increase the uptake of both. 

 
 
7.0 Proposed Team Structure 
 
7.1 The revised Lifeline service team would deliver: 

 Lifeline services (installation, monitoring, call monitoring and responding 
to activations) 

 Residential support for the Council’s sheltered housing 

 Out-of-Hours response (24/7) 

 Co-ordination of delivery of the DFG 

 Additional companion services to meet the needs of customers. 
 
7.2 Option C proposes a staff team of 8 FTE; 4 support officers, 2 Residential 

Officers (funded via HRA and private fee income), 1 DFG Coordinator (funded 
by DFG) and a Supervisor, a reduction of 3.93 FTE. 

 
 
8.0 Implications  
 
8.1  Legal Implications 
 

There are no direct legal implications.  
 

8.2 Financial Implications 
 
8.2.1 NYCC income will cease during the 2018/19 financial year. This represents a 

combined loss of £111k (£92k SP and £19k Telecare funding). As part of 
agreed transitions, NYCC have provided £20k (Telecare until June 2018 and 
SP funding to Sept 2018). This has been included in the latest 2018/19 
projection in the table above. 

 
8.2.2 In 2017/18 private customer income was £212k. Latest forecasts suggest this 

could achieve up to £234k although at this early stage in the year there is 
clearly some risk to that. Option C assumes growth in private payers of £32k 
and table 1 below demonstrates the impact with and without growth (with the 
latter based on the 2017/18 level plus inflation).  

 

Page 19



8.2.3 All proposals include receiving a contribution from the HRA £65k. This 
contribution covers the residential wardens at Laurie Backhouse Court and St 
Wilfrid’s, and management of the 10 housing community centres. 
 

8.2.4 The following table summarises the financial implications of the options under 
consideration compared to the current approved budget. Whilst all of the 
options considered would see an overall increase in net ‘cost’ to the Council, 
even with no assumed income growth, Option C is the most favourable option.  

 
Table 1 

 2018/19 
Budget  
£ 000’s 

2018/19 
Estimated 

Outturn  
£ 000’s 

Option A 
– Do 

Nothing 
£ 000’s 

Option B 
– 

Disconti
nue 

Service  
£ 000’s 

Option C  
with 

Income 
Growth 
£ 000’s 

Option C 
No 

Income 
Growth  
£ 000’s 

 

Total Income (432) (319) (299) 0 (357) (308) 

Total Direct Costs 311 286 315 0 270 270 

Contribution to 
corporate 
overheads 

(121) (33) 16 0 (87) (38) 

Overall net 
‘cost’ compared 
to current 
approved 
budget 

 88 136 121 33 83 

Support Services 
(CEC) Recharges 

94 94 94  63 63 

Other Corporate 
Costs (Dep’n) 

28 28 28  28 28 

Net Cost of 
Service 

1 89 138  3 53 

% Full Cost 
Recovery 

100% 78% 68%  100% 85% 

Transition costs    38 12 12 

 
Option A – Do nothing 
 

8.2.5 Table 1 demonstrates that doing nothing ‘option A’ is not a model for 
sustainability and has a detrimental impact on Council finances. Retaining the 
current service structure and assuming no income growth would result in a 
gross loss of £16k which would require an increase of £136k in the annual 
budget for this service. After allocating overheads and depreciation the net 
cost of the service increases to £138k.   

  
Option B – Discontinue Service 

 
8.2.6 Discontinuing the service would remove the direct net cost of the service but 

would also lose any potential contribution to the Council’s corporate 
overheads and therefore this option is not recommended. Compared to our 
current budget this option would increase the Council’s overall budget by 
£121k.  

 
 

Page 20



Option C 
 
8.2.7 Option C has been modelled on a customer base of 820 and reflects a new 

pricing structure. The service currently has 840 customers of which 104 are 
Supporting People funded. Based on the offer of the new service and fees, 
the expectation is that 80% of these SP funded customers will be retained 
(based on retention rates achieved during the last 3 years) when NYCC 
funding ends. 

 
8.2.8 This option has been calculated on the basis of 6 support officers grade 1b 

(two being residential wardens), one DFG Coordinator grade 2a, and one 
supervisor grade 3b within the team. To achieve this structure, redundancies 
£12k and potential one-off pension strain costs will be likely. 

 
8.2.9 The DFG Coordinator post will be funded from the administration charge 

which can be applied to DFG.  
 
8.2.10 The option C projection has been calculated on the basis of the cost of OOH 

callouts being included in the annual fee. This gives the worst-case scenario 
in terms of full cost recovery, whilst ensuring that vulnerable customers are 
not discouraged from requesting the service because of fears regarding cost. 
A charge will be made for callouts on a unit basis in instances where it is not 
an emergency. 

 
8.2.11For the purposes of charging the financial implications have been modelled on 

the assumption that CECs recharged to the service would be revised in future 
years on a per capita basis, as the staff team reduces. However, as 
highlighted previously, these are fixed overhead costs and as such will need 
to be allocated to alternative services. Therefore, whilst Option C aims for full 
cost recovery there will still be a £33k increase in the overall net cost to the 
Council which will require the approval of a permanent budget increase as 
part of the 2019/20 budget (subject to the outcome of the trial). It should also 
be noted that without the planned growth in the client base and income, the 
increase in overall net cost would be £83k p.a. 
 

8.2.12The option C budget has been calculated on the basis of one full year, under 
the new arrangements. Restructuring the team and revising charging levels 
will take time, hence the recommendation for an 18-month trial basis. 
 

8.2.13 All the proposed changes to the service will not be in place until April 2019 
and therefore the projected outturn for the service in 2018/19 shows a net 
cost of £89k against a net budget of £1k – an increase of £88k. This will be 
included in the overall in-year projections and managed within the Council’s 
existing General Fund budget. 
 

8.2.14 A full business case has been prepared to develop the new fees and charges. 
This is based on the Council’s Corporate Charging Policy and aims to achieve 
full cost recovery by reducing the cost of the service and growing the client 
base. 
 

Page 21



8.2.15 The service can achieve full cost recovery on a sustained customer base 
minimum of 951 (an additional 131 customers). As explained in 5.3 Option C, 
the flexibility of the pay-for-play model is seen as attractive to customers and 
easy to understand so the expectation is any initial loss of SP funded 
customers will be recovered as the new service is promoted by the combined 
DFG and Lifeline support team. Performance of the team will be monitored 
closely and reviewed quarterly. It should be noted that without this growth in 
client base to meet full cost recovery would lead to a shortfall of income and 
only 85% of total cost being fully recovered. 

 
8.2.16 If additional support visits are optional, there is a risk of customers choosing 

not to receive these visits. Our projections are based on a conservative 
assumption that just 25% of customers will continue to receive regular visits. 
Furthermore, income from support visits represents just 14% of total income 
projected. Therefore if actual volumes vary from projections, the impact on the 
financial picture for the service will be negligible. The reconfigured team will 
have capacity for growth if the additional companion visits prove popular. If 
growth exceeds expectations the full cost recover model enables the service 
to recruit to meet demand subject to approval of a business case at that time. 

 
8.3 Policy and Risk Implications 
 
8.3.1 Charging proposals (Appendix B) have been benchmarked to ensure the 

rates are competitive and comparable with other providers. The proposed 
levels of support available and fees are comparable with the current Friends 
and Family and Lifeline Plus compares favourably with Level 1. Most 
customers will see little change in the charges and will benefit from the 
introduction of OOH. 

  
8.3.2 The product offered is higher quality than the current private sector offer but 

with comparable prices. In April and May the service received 35 new 
referrals, should this continue and the referrals sign up to the new service, 
new customers could be as high as 210 per year. 

 
8.4 Corporate Plan Implications 
 
8.4.1 The Lifeline service is not a statutory function. However, the service is a 

significant contributor to the Corporate plan, particularly priorities 2 and 3 of 
the Corporate plan, making Selby a great place to enjoy life, and make a 
difference. Option C would enable the service to also deliver great value for 
the Council. 

 
8.5 Resource Implications 
 
8.5.1 The review will be undertaken in accordance with the ‘Protocol for the 

Management of Organisational Change and Redundancy Policy’. Initially 

voluntary redundancy will not be offered. 

8.5.2 Supporting Option C would result in a reduction of staff (3.93 FTE).  The 

contracts of all affected staff would be at risk for the purposes of redundancy. 

Page 22



The Council will undertake the review in accordance with the ‘Protocol for the 

Management of Organisational Change and Redundancy Policy. 

8.5.3 Should the service be discontinued (Options B) the Council will incur 

redundancy costs (£37,847) and a potential pension strain. 

8.6 Other Implications 
 
8.6.1 Ceasing this non statutory service may have reputational implications as it’s 

seen by customers as essential, a genuine ‘lifeline’ giving them the 
confidence to continue to live in their own home. Customers, and the wider 
public have reacted negatively where such a service that supports the 
vulnerable, disabled and elderly to live independently have been withdrawn.  

 
 8.7 Equalities Impact Assessment  

 
 Equality, Diversity, and Community Screenings have been carried out for the 

Fees and charges business case that indicate no significant impact. 
 

Screening has been completed for all options. Based on continuation of a 
service in some form the impact is minimum to moderate.  
 
If the service is discontinued a full assessment would be required including 
consultation with affected groups.  

 
 

9. Conclusion 
 
9.1 Supporting Option C will ensure the Council continues to provide a vital 

service that is an integral part of delivering the Corporate plan.  It will enable 
the Council to play a key role in supporting better outcomes for individuals, 
help reduce isolation and help manage demand across the wider health and 
social care system, supporting more people to remain independent in their 
own home. 

 
10. Background Documents 

 
Lifeline Annual Report 2017 
Equality, Diversity, and Community Screening documents 
 

11. Appendices 
 

Appendix A Financial implications breakdown 
Appendix B – Lifeline Service Charges, Current and Proposed 
 
Contact Officer:  
June Rothwell 
Head of Operational Services 
jrothwell@Selby.gov.uk 
01757 292103  

Page 23

mailto:jrothwell@Selby.gov.uk


A
c
c
o

u
n

t d
e
s
c
rip

tio
n

2
0
1
8
/1

9
 B

u
d

g
e
t

E
s
tim

a
te

d
 

2
0
1
8
/1

9
 

O
u

ttu
rn

O
p

tio
n

 A
 - D

o
 

n
o

th
in

g

O
p

tio
n

 B
 - 

D
is

c
o

n
tin

u
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

O
p

tio
n

 C
- w

ith
 

in
c
o

m
e
 g

ro
w

th

O
p

tio
n

 C
 - n

o
 

in
c
o

m
e
 g

ro
w

th
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

In
c
o

m
e

O
T
H

E
R

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T
 G

R
A

N
T
S

-9
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
-2

0
,0

0
0
.0

0
N

Y
C

C
 S

p
p
o
rtin

g
 P

e
o
p
le

 fu
n
d
in

g

N
Y

C
C

 T
E

L
E

C
A

R
E

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

-1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
N

Y
C

C
 T

e
le

c
a
re

P
R

IV
A

T
E

 P
A

Y
E

R
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 F
E

E
-2

6
2
,0

2
0
.0

0
-2

3
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
-2

3
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
-2

6
5
,9

4
0
.0

0
-2

1
6
,2

4
0
.0

0

O
p
tio

n
 C

 - In
c
lu

d
e
s g

ro
w

th
 e

stim
a
te

 o
f 1

3
0
 C

u
sto

m
e
rs g

e
n
e
ra

tin
g
 £

3
2
k. 

T
h
e
 n

o
 g

ro
w

th
 O

p
tio

n
 C

 sc
e
n
a
rio

 a
ssu

m
e
s in

c
o
m

e
 a

t 2
0
1
7
/1

8
 le

ve
l p

lu
s 

in
fla

tio
n

O
T
H

E
R

 C
E

C
 R

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
 - C

h
a
rg

e
 to

 H
R

A
-6

5
,0

8
0
.0

0
-6

5
,0

8
0
.0

0
-6

5
,0

8
0
.0

0
-6

5
,0

8
0
.0

0
-6

5
,0

8
0
.0

0
M

g
m

t o
f C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 C
e
n
tre

s - to
 re

vie
w

 a
n
n
u
a
l in

fla
tio

n
 &

 c
a
lc

u
la

tio
n

O
T
H

E
R

 C
E

C
 R

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
 - C

h
a
rg

e
 to

 D
F

G
s

-2
6
,4

6
0
.0

0
-2

6
,4

6
0
.0

0
D

F
G

 C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r

T
o

ta
l In

c
o

m
e

-4
3
2
,1

0
0
.0

0
-3

1
9
,0

8
0
.0

0
-2

9
9
,0

8
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
-3

5
7
,4

8
0
.0

0
-3

0
7
,7

8
0
.0

0

D
ire

c
t C

o
s
ts

G
R

O
S

S
 P

A
Y

2
1
0
,3

6
0
.0

0
1
8
9
,2

5
0
.0

0
2
1
0
,3

6
0
.0

0
1
5
5
,6

4
0
.0

0
1
5
5
,6

4
0
.0

0
In

c
lu

d
e
s D

F
G

 C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

R
S

1
3
,4

5
0
.0

0
1
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,4

5
0
.0

0
1
2
,1

9
0
.0

0
1
2
,1

9
0
.0

0

S
U

P
E

R
A

N
N

U
A

T
IO

N
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

R
S

3
5
,3

5
0
.0

0
3
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
3
5
,3

5
0
.0

0
2
5
,9

7
0
.0

0
2
5
,9

7
0
.0

0

S
T
A

N
D

B
Y

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

1
8
,7

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,7

0
0
.0

0
N

e
w

 O
u
t o

f H
o
u
rs / S

ta
n
d
b
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

A
P

P
R

E
N

T
IC

E
S

H
IP

 L
E

V
Y

9
2
0
.0

0
9
2
0
.0

0
9
2
0
.0

0
9
2
0
.0

0
L
ike

ly
 to

 re
d
u
c
e
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 fin

a
l te

a
m

 stru
c
tu

re

C
A

R
 A

L
L
O

W
A

N
C

E
S

2
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
2
,4

6
0
.0

0
2
2
,4

6
0
.0

0
R

e
fle

c
ts sm

a
lle

r te
a
m

 b
u
t m

o
re

 m
ile

a
g
e

C
L
O

T
H

IN
G

 &
 U

N
IF

O
R

M
S

1
,6

0
0
.0

0
1
,6

0
0
.0

0
1
,6

0
0
.0

0
1
,2

6
0
.0

0
1
,2

6
0
.0

0
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 sta

ff le
ve

l

P
R

IV
A

T
E

 C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
O

R
S

 - C
O

N
T
R

A
C

T
2
5
,4

8
0
.0

0
2
7
,4

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,4

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
8
,5

0
0
.0

0

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
S

 - O
F

F
IC

E
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
2
9
0
.0

0
2
9
0
.0

0

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
S

 - M
O

B
IL

E
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
1
,8

5
0
.0

0
1
,7

6
0
.0

0
1
,7

6
0
.0

0
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 sta

ff le
ve

l

S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T
IO

N
S

1
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
,2

3
0
.0

0
T
e
le

c
a
re

 S
e
rvic

e
 A

sso
c
ia

tio
n
 - n

e
w

 su
b
sc

rip
tio

n
 in

 1
7
/1

8

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
S

1
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
,2

3
0
.0

0
1
,2

3
0
.0

0
In

su
ra

n
c
e
 A

llo
c
a
tio

n
 - F

irst in
c
u
rre

d
 1

7
/1

8
 - S

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 in

c
lu

d
e
d

T
o

ta
l D

ire
c
t C

o
s
ts

3
1
1
,2

9
0
.0

0
2
8
5
,8

3
0
.0

0
3
1
4
,6

7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
7
0
,1

5
0
.0

0
2
7
0
,1

5
0
.0

0

N
e
t P

o
s
itio

n
 - D

ire
c
t C

o
s
ts

 &
 In

c
o

m
e
 =

 

C
o

n
trib

u
tio

n
 to

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
-1

2
0
,8

1
0
.0

0
-3

3
,2

5
0
.0

0
1
5
,5

9
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
-8

7
,3

3
0
.0

0
-3

7
,6

3
0
.0

0

O
v
e
ra

ll N
e
t c

o
s
t to

 C
o

u
n

c
il c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 to

 

c
u

rre
n

t b
u

d
g

e
t

8
7
,5

6
0
.0

0
1
3
6
,4

0
0
.0

0
1
2
0
,8

1
0
.0

0
3
3
,4

8
0
.0

0
8
3
,1

8
0
.0

0

C
o
n
trib

u
tio

n
 is th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t a

va
ila

b
e
 a

fte
r d

ire
c
t in

c
o
m

e
/c

o
sts to

 c
o
u
n
t 

to
w

a
rd

s c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 fixe

d
 o

ve
rh

e
a
d
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (In

d
ire

c
t C

o
s
ts

)

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
E

C
5
,3

4
0
.0

0
5
,3

4
0
.0

0
5
,3

4
0
.0

0
5
,3

4
0
.0

0
3
,5

6
0
.0

0
3
,5

6
0
.0

0
S

u
p
p
o
rt se

rvic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s a

re
 sh

o
w

n
 re

d
u
c
e
d
 fo

r o
p
tio

n
 C

 b
u
t in

 re
a
lity

C
U

S
T
O

M
E

R
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

E
C

7
,9

8
0
.0

0
7
,9

8
0
.0

0
7
,9

8
0
.0

0
7
,9

8
0
.0

0
5
,3

2
0
.0

0
5
,3

2
0
.0

0
th

e
se

 w
ill b

e
 re

d
istrib

u
te

d
 to

 o
th

e
r se

rvic
e
s a

n
d
 w

ill n
o
t b

e
 a

 sa
ve

d

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

 C
E

C
1
6
,3

8
0
.0

0
1
6
,3

8
0
.0

0
1
6
,3

8
0
.0

0
1
6
,3

8
0
.0

0
1
0
,9

2
0
.0

0
1
0
,9

2
0
.0

0

C
O

M
P

U
T
E

R
S

 C
E

C
1
9
,3

9
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

9
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

9
0
.0

0
1
9
,3

9
0
.0

0
1
2
,9

3
0
.0

0
1
2
,9

3
0
.0

0

O
P

E
R

A
T
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 T

E
A

M
 C

E
C

2
3
,7

2
0
.0

0
2
3
,7

2
0
.0

0
2
3
,7

2
0
.0

0
2
3
,7

2
0
.0

0
1
5
,8

1
0
.0

0
1
5
,8

1
0
.0

0

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 &

 E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
 C

E
C

2
0
,9

9
0
.0

0
2
0
,9

9
0
.0

0
2
0
,9

9
0
.0

0
2
0
,9

9
0
.0

0
1
3
,9

9
0
.0

0
1
3
,9

9
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l In

d
ire

c
t C

o
s
ts

9
3
,8

0
0
.0

0
9
3
,8

0
0
.0

0
9
3
,8

0
0
.0

0
9
3
,8

0
0
.0

0
6
2
,5

3
0
.0

0
6
2
,5

3
0
.0

0

N
e
t P

o
s
itio

n
 - a

fte
r In

d
ire

c
t c

o
s
ts

-2
7
,0

1
0
.0

0
6
0
,5

5
0
.0

0
1
0
9
,3

9
0
.0

0
9
3
,8

0
0
.0

0
-2

4
,8

0
0
.0

0
2
4
,9

0
0
.0

0

A
c
c
o

u
n

tin
g

 A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T
IO

N
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
N

o
tio

n
a
l c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
st - d

e
p
re

c
ia

tio
n
 o

f e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

T
o

ta
l A

c
c
o

u
n

tin
g

 A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0
2
8
,1

8
0
.0

0

N
e
t C

o
s
t o

f S
e
rv

ic
e

1
,1

7
0
.0

0
8
8
,7

3
0
.0

0
1
3
7
,5

7
0
.0

0
1
2
1
,9

8
0
.0

0
3
,3

8
0
.0

0
5
3
,0

8
0
.0

0

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 - F

u
ll C

o
s
t R

e
c
o

v
e
ry

9
9
.7

3
%

7
8
.2

4
%

6
8
.4

9
%

0
.0

0
%

9
9
.0

6
%

8
5
.2

9
%

Appendix A - Financial Implications breakdown 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 24



Appendix B – Lifeline Service Charges, Current and Proposed 

 

Currently levels of support: 
 

Current Service 
levels 

Price per 
week 

Service description 

Friends and Family £4.50 Call monitoring - No support service 
visits 

Reassurance £5.55 Call monitoring and biannual 
support plan visits 

Level 1 £6.65 Call monitoring  and monthly 
support plan visits 

Level 2 £13.30 Call monitoring  and weekly support 
plan visits 

Standalone N/A Installation only 

 
 

 
The New charges (products) under option C: are for the revised service: 
 

Proposed service 
levels 

Price per 
week 

Service description 

Lifeline £4.80 call monitoring, Friends and Family 
and emergency response 

Lifeline Plus 
Monthly 

£9.65 As above with monthly companion 
visits 

Lifeline Plus 
Quarterly 

£6.40 As above with a Quarterly 
companion visits 

Additional services, charged per call 

30 min companion 
visit  

£22.00 Short companion visit providing 
reassurance and support for 
customer  

1 hour companion 
visit  

£32.00 longer companion visit providing 
reassurance and support for 
customer 

Out of Hour call out £42.00 non-emergency – customer insists 
on none urgent attendance by 
support officer 

 
  
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Summit Indoor Adventure Activity Refresh
	5 Review of the Lifeline Service

